Dr. Sinee Sankrusme

# International Business Correspondence



## Sankrusme, Sinee: International Business Correspondence, Hamburg, Anchor Academic Publishing 2017

PDF-eBook-ISBN: 978-3-96067-630-0

Druck/Herstellung: Anchor Academic Publishing, Hamburg, 2017

#### Bibliografische Information der Deutschen Nationalbibliothek:

Die Deutsche Nationalbibliothek verzeichnet diese Publikation in der Deutschen Nationalbibliografie; detaillierte bibliografische Daten sind im Internet über http://dnb.d-nb.de abrufbar.

#### Bibliographical Information of the German National Library:

The German National Library lists this publication in the German National Bibliography. Detailed bibliographic data can be found at: http://dnb.d-nb.de

All rights reserved. This publication may not be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior permission of the publishers.

Das Werk einschließlich aller seiner Teile ist urheberrechtlich geschützt. Jede Verwertung außerhalb der Grenzen des Urheberrechtsgesetzes ist ohne Zustimmung des Verlages unzulässig und strafbar. Dies gilt insbesondere für Vervielfältigungen, Übersetzungen, Mikroverfilmungen und die Einspeicherung und Bearbeitung in elektronischen Systemen.

Die Wiedergabe von Gebrauchsnamen, Handelsnamen, Warenbezeichnungen usw. in diesem Werk berechtigt auch ohne besondere Kennzeichnung nicht zu der Annahme, dass solche Namen im Sinne der Warenzeichen- und Markenschutz-Gesetzgebung als frei zu betrachten wären und daher von jedermann benutzt werden dürften.

Die Informationen in diesem Werk wurden mit Sorgfalt erarbeitet. Dennoch können Fehler nicht vollständig ausgeschlossen werden und die Diplomica Verlag GmbH, die Autoren oder Übersetzer übernehmen keine juristische Verantwortung oder irgendeine Haftung für evtl. verbliebene fehlerhafte Angaben und deren Folgen.

Alle Rechte vorbehalten

© Anchor Academic Publishing, Imprint der Diplomica Verlag GmbH Hermannstal 119k, 22119 Hamburg http://www.diplomica-verlag.de, Hamburg 2017 Printed in Germany

## **BRIEF CONTENTS**

		Page
CHAPTER 1	INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LETTER WRITING	1
CHAPTER 2	INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LETTER STRUCTURE	30
CHAPTER 3	SALES LETTER	54
CHAPTER 4	INQUIRY LETTER	101
CHAPTER 5	ORDER LETTER	151
CHAPTER 6	COMPLAINT LETTER	196
CHAPTER 7	ADJUSTMENT LETTER	235
CHAPTER 8	PAYMENT LETTER	276
CHAPTER 9	TRANSPORTATION AND SHIPPING LETTER	322
CHAPTER 10	INSURANCE LETTER	375
CHAPTER 11	BANKING LETTER	420

## **CONTENTS**

		Page
PREFACE		xii
ACKNOWLED	GEMENTS	xiv
ABOUT THE A	UTHOR	XV
CHAPTER 1	INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LETTER WRITING	1
	Introduction to International Business Letter Writing	1
	International Business Letter Defined	1
	Importance and Purpose of a Business Letter	3
	Important Points to Consider in Writing a Business Letter	5
	How to Create an Effective Business Letter	6
	Planning a Letter	7
	Research the Facts	7
	Consider the Subject and the Reader	7
	Set Your Objective and Make Sure to Accomplish It	8
	Components of an Effective Business Letter	8
	Language	9
	Tone	9
	Focus	10
	Length	11
	Stationary	11
	8 C's of Business Letter	15
	Clarity	15
	Conciseness	16
	Consideration	17
	Courtesy	17

	Correctness	18
	Character	18
	Concreteness	18
	Cheerfulness	18
	International Business Letters	19
	Sales Letter	19
	Inquiry Letter	20
	Order Letter	20
	Complaint Letter	20
	Adjustment Letter	20
	Payment Letter	21
	Transportation and Shipping Letter	21
	Insurance Letter	21
	Banking Letter	22
	International Business Letter Today and in the Future	22
	Researches Support International Business Correspondence	23
	Notes	27
CHAPTER 2	INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LETTER STRUCTURE	30
	Structure of International Business Letters	30
	Heading: letterhead and address	31
	Date	31
	Reference Line	32
	Inside Address	33
	Attention Line	33
	Salutation	33
	Subject Line	34

	Body of the Letter	35
	Complimentary Close	36
	Signature	37
	Identification Line	37
	Enclosures	38
	Carbon Copy Notation	38
	Postscript or P.S.	39
	Letter Styles for International Business Correspondence	41
	Full Block Form	41
	Block Form	41
	Semi Block Form	41
	Addressing Envelopes	45
	Exercises	47
	Notes	53
CHAPTER 3	SALES LETTER	54
	Introduction to Sales Letter	54
	Sales Letter	55
	Advantages of Sales Letter	56
	Sales Letter Versus Other Selling Scheme	56
	Use and Elements of Sales Letter	57
	Uses of Sales Letters	57
	The Elements of Sales Letter	58
	Effective and Attractive Sales Letter	63
	Writing a Prospective Letter	63
	The Essence of Persuasion	65
	Sales Letter Template and Format	70

	Fundamentals of Effective Sales Letter Writing	73
	Sales Expression	74
	Sales-Reply	75
	Examples of Sales Letter	77
	Sales Vocabulary	97
	Exercises	98
	Notes	99
CHAPTER 4	INQUIRY LETTER	101
	Principles of Inquiry Letter	101
	Solicited Letter	102
	Unsolicited Letter	102
	Guideline of Inquiry letter	104
	The opening	104
	Asking for information or Inquiry Proper	105
	The closing	105
	Topics of Inquiries and Their Corresponding Replies	106
	General Inquiries	107
	Inquiry of Details	108
	Catalogues and Price Lists	109
	Patterns and Samples	110
	Goods on Approval	112
	Routine Quotations and Estimations	115
	Suggesting Terms, Method of Payment and Discounts	120
	Request for Concession	120
	Follow-Up Letters	122
	From the Inquirer	122
	From the Letter Receiver or Supplier	123
	Principal of Inquiry Letter Writing	124
	Enquiry Expression	125
	Enquiry-Reply	126

	Examples of Enquiry Letter	128
	Enquiry Vocabulary	148
	Exercises	149
	Notes	150
CHAPTER 5	ORDER LETTER	151
	Principles of Order Letter Writing	151
	Making Order Letter	153
	By Mail Order	153
	By Form	154
	By Letter	156
	Legal Responsibility of the Parties	158
	The Buyer's Legal Responsibility	158
	The Seller's Legal Responsibility	158
	Acknowledging Orders	158
	Formal Acknowledgment of Routine Orders	159
	Acknowledgment of First Order	161
	Filling of Order	163
	Delays in Delivery	163
	Orders Which Cannot be Filled	164
	Delivery and Dispatch	166
	Order Expression	167
	Order-Reply	168
	Examples of Order Letter	170
	Order Vocabulary	192
	Exercises	193
	Notes	195

CHAPTER 6	COMPLAINT LETTER	196
	Principles of Complaint Letter Writing	196
	Justified Complaints	197
	Making General Complaints	198
	The Language of Complaints	198
	Specifying the Problem	199
	Suggesting a Solution	200
	Principles of Complaint Letter	200
	Guideline for Complaint Letter	201
	Opening	201
	Contents	201
	Closing	202
	Guideline of Handling Complaints	204
	Asking Time to Investigate	204
	Explaining the Mistake	204
	Solving the Problem	205
	Unjustified Complaints	208
	How to Identify an Unjustified Complaints	208
	Points of Remember	209
	Rejecting the Complaints	210
	Complaint Expression	210
	Examples of Complaint Letter	212
	Complaint Vocabulary	232
	Exercises	233
	Notes	234

CHAPTER 7	ADJUSTMENT LETTER	235
	Fundamentals of Adjustment Letter	235
	What Is Adjustment Letter?	239
	Principles of Adjustment Letter	242
	Proper Attitude Towards Complaints	242
	Analysis of Claims and Complaints and How to Address It	242
	Giving the Appropriate Adjustments	245
	Making and Keeping Your Relationship in Good Terms	248
	Principles of Adjustment Letter Writing	249
	Adjustment Expression	251
	Examples of Adjustment Letter	253
	Adjustment Vocabulary	273
	Exercises	274
	Notes	275
CHAPTER 8	PAYMENT LETTER	276
	Fundamentals of Payment	276
	Methods of Payment	277
	Cash in Advance	277
	Letter of Credit	277
	Documentary Collections	281
	Open Account	281
	Consignment	282
	Invoices and Statements	282
	Invoice	282
	Statement of Account	286
	Principles of Payment Letter	287

	Request for Payment	287
	First Request	287
	Second Request	288
	Third Request (Final Demand)	289
	Advice for Payment	290
	Delayed Payment	292
	Acknowledgement of Payment	294
	Principles of Payment Letter Writing	295
	Payment Expression	296
	Examples of Payment Letter	298
	Payment Vocabulary	318
	Exercises	319
	Notes	320
CHAPTER 9	TRANSPORTATION AND SHIPPING LETTER	322
	Types of Carrier for Transport	322
	Carriage by Road	322
	Carriage by Rail	323
	Carriage by Sea	323
	Carriage by Air	324
	Transport Documentation	324
	Consignment Note or Waybill	324
	Carriage by Road	325
	Carriage by Rail	325
	Carriage by Air	325
	Bill of Lading	326
	Shipping	327

	Types of Vessels for Shipping	327
	The Container Service	328
	Organization for Shipping	329
	Company Instructions and Conditions	330
	Shipping Documentation	336
	Importance of Documentation	336
	Documents Needed For Shipping	336
	Insurance for Shipping	338
	Forwarding Agents	339
	Principles of Transportation Letter Writing	348
	Transportation Expression	349
	Examples of Transportation Letter	351
	Transportation Vocabulary	371
	Exercises	372
	Notes	373
CHAPTER 10	INSURANCE LETTER	375
	Fundamentals of Insurance	375
	What is Insurance and Its Use	376
	Types of Insurance	376
	Principles of Insurance Correspondences	380
	Insurance Procedure	383
	Insurance Contract	385
	Claims	389
	Insurance Coverage	394
	Principles of Insurance Letter Writing	395
	Insurance Expression	396

	Examples of Insurance Letter	398
	Insurance Vocabulary	416
	Exercises	417
	Notes	418
CHAPTER 11	BANKING LETTER	420
	Banking Services	420
	Types of Banks	421
	Types of Bank Accounts	423
	International Banking	429
	Types of Payment in Foreign Trade	429
	Banker's Draft	429
	Banker's Transfer (Mail, Telex, and Telegraphic)	432
	Bills of Exchange	437
	Documentary Credits and Commercial Credits	439
	Principles of Banking Letter Writing	442
	Banking Expression	443
	Examples of Banking Letter	445
	Banking Vocabulary	465
	Exercises	466
	Notes	467
BIBLIOGRAPHY		469

#### **PREFACE**

International business correspondences are not simply writing or information exchange. It is something that you want others to know about you. To know about your business and the way you deal with business transactions. It is by the way you create your letter that your reader can identify if you are friendly, rude, or you just simply want to do business. Your letter shows an attitude. This is one reason why it is important to consider your way of writing, write professionally and with courtesy. Success of business transactions is not only dependent on your ability to talk and communicate verbally, but also the way you communicate in letters. How important is leaning the proper way of writing business letters? It is one of the priorities. That's how important it is. You need to learn how to make an effective and successful business letter. This book will help you to make your written communications to improve and to be effective. This is by guiding you through the steps and guidelines of making an effective letter. Aside from that, you will learn to see that planning is important. Gathering information and doing some research will help you. As you go through this book, you'll be able to see the areas of business letters where it is critical to answer complaints, it will save you to make adjustments, it is important and friendly to reply to inquiries, it is good to be precise in your quotations, it is proper to acknowledge placed orders or acknowledge payment, it is worth to check all outgoing orders for shipment and delivery, it is important to have an insurance policy, it is tedious to deal internationally without bank transactions, and it is by connection that you can increase your sales. You need to connect to your customers and readers in order to build a good working relationship. If you are able to establish a good relationship, they will value you as their business partners. Skills in creating business letter are important in the success of your business. Business letter writing skills will also boost your confidence as a businessman and will help boost your business as well.

For globally competitive business firms, writing an effective international business letter is as important as keeping your customer satisfied. Because most part of international transactions are not communicated by talking on the phone all the time, considering overseas calls are expensive, but in written communications. The purpose of this book is to provide a good foundation in making international business correspondences by detailing the facts and providing practical practices involved in international business correspondences.

This book aims to help students to develop their skills and confidence in writing international business letters. This can also be served as a reference for students in the college and university levels.

This book has been designed, compiled and written to help provide help to people who are not only dealing with business in their locality but also internationally. This will not only provide theories but practical examples. The book concentrates on international business letters particularly in the area of Sales, Inquiry, Order, Complaint, Adjustment, Payment, Transportation and Shipment, Insurance, and Banking.

The main text is divided into eleven chapters:

- 1. International Business Letter Writing
- 2. International business letter structure
- 3. Sales letter
- 4. Inquiry letter
- 5. Order letter
- 6. Complaint letter
- 7. Adjustment letter
- 8. Payment letter
- 9. Transportation and Shipping Letter
- 10. Insurance Letter
- 11. Banking Letter

International business transaction is impossible to be done without business letters. It always involves business written communication. As the above topics are to be covered, it is very important to note that business success will continue to come as you allow development and growth in your business. One factor to consider is your written communication. International business correspondence is an essential part of business.

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS**

International business respondents for all is designed for students of commerce, businessmen and businesswomen, and people from other walks of life. An executive, a department manager, a salesman, a secretary or a specialist in business technology will inevitably have to write English letters. Beyond this, there is a need for communication with many customers who will want to purchase products from abroad. This book presents readers with exemplary letters and phrases quintessential to business matters. The letters in this book cover many areas of international business communication. Although writing is a solitary task, the concerted effort of many individuals is needed to transform an author's words into a book. Many committed and talented people have contributed to the success of this book. It is impossible to thank all of them here, but I sincerely wish to convey my deep appreciation to those who have offered invaluable help. I am very grateful to all who reviewed different portions of the manuscript. Their invaluable suggestions went a long way in making this book a reality. I deeply appreciate all the writers whose works have served as a foundation for ideas and inspirations for this book. I also want to use this opportunity to thank all the business houses and others who were generous enough to provide information for this book. To my family and dear friends, I say a big thank you. Your love and support helped me discover myself and realize my dreams. Finally, my heartfelt appreciation goes to many persons for their kind assistance in reading the manuscript and providing beneficial recommendations while editing and completing this book. I would like to express my gratitude to many of my friends, associates, and all those whose inputs, suggestions, and encouragements contributed to the improvement of this book. This book is a dream come true, thanks to all of you.

Sinee Sankrusme

#### ABOUT THE AUTHOR

Dr. Sinee Sankrusme is currently associate professor of international business at department of international business, Faculty of Business Administration, Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand. She held position as head department of international business. She has authored almost one hundred articles and several books entitled International Business Communication, International Business and Trade Documents, International Business and Effects on Changes, Organizational Behavior and Management, Agribusiness, Agricultural Marketing, Agricultural Business, Management, And Human Resource Management, etc. Most of her research focuses on international business, marketing, human resource, business, organization, and management, etc. She is widely recognized for numerous publications in the international business and also joined the international business conferences.

#### **CHAPTER 1**

#### INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LETTER WRITING

Business communication is very important. One of the most used business communication before and now is the business letter. The business letter continues to circulate locally and overseas for its purpose. A lot of areas in business are using the business letter, may it be for placing of order, acknowledgement, adjustments, payment, insurance purposes, or even banking transactions.

International business communication continues to grow, especially this time where the market is open globally. Business firms aim to be competitive. In order to do this they will not only try to conquer the market in their area, but also needs to be part of the global market. One of their means to convey their messages and purposes is the International Business Letters. It is then safe to say that business letter is inevitable in the business world.

#### INTRODUCTION TO INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LETTER WRITING

Small, medium or large business reaches success at some point. There are factors to consider in order for that success to come. One of which is the use of business letters. To start with a promotion, to announce an opening, to communicate your products available, negotiation, to close a sale, and so on, these are just some of the areas where a business letter is involved. The proper use of business letter will give an affirmative feedback for the company. These letters serve as a representative of your company. This book will give you aid and guidelines in considering or writing a business letter. This will particularly be concentrating on International Business Letters.

#### **International Business Letter Defined**

A business letter is a recognized way of communication between people or company who deals with trading, may it be for goods or in service. The trade between the two entities is built and progresses as they communicate through the business letter. Business letter is considered as an official document. It is not like any other thank you letters or postcards. This letter is issued with authority.<sup>2</sup> A business letter is also an effective and influential

communications tool in order to have a systematic and structured flow of information between two transacting entities. This is a letter used for essential communications. A wrong impression placed on a letter may result to a negative feedback from a reader. That's why writing a business letter needs a skill. Any person dealing with business letters is seeking for guidelines in order to convey the correct message.<sup>3</sup>

A business letter is an essential document because it deals with trade concerns. It shows how professional the writer is in conveying what he wants to inform his reader and how the receiver react on the writer's concern.<sup>4</sup> An International Business Letter is then defined as a business letter that deals with communications not only in one particular country, but internationally. To start a business letter, you have to note that the first thing the reader would like to know is, "what is the letter all about?" The following phrase could be used:

"We are currently looking for an alternative for the model AR-456 for computer cables. We hope that you can be able to accommodate this order."

"We are requesting for your signature on the attached documents."

"The form is attached herein for you to fill-out in order for your application to move on."

Now, that your reader know what the letter is all about, you may end it with a polite request for their prompt reply.<sup>6</sup> These phrases could help:

"Thank you and we hope to receive your reply by the 30<sup>th</sup> of June, 2016."

"Your prompt reply is very much appreciated."

"Thank you for sending the form immediately."

Below is an example of an International Business Letter. It is an inquiry letter requesting one organization to be one of the sponsors in one big event:

We are from ADWorld Small Animal Inc. We are an organization that deals with foods and accessories for small animals. We have 40 members as of to-date and our main office is located in Sydney, Australia. Our complete and detailed profile can be found in our website at www.ADWorldOrg.com.

Every two years, we are conducting conferences in different places. This coming year is another year for us to look forward to since we will be conducting the ADWorld 2017 which will be on November 3-5. This time it will be held in the prestigious city of Tokyo, Japan.

We would like to invite to be one of our sponsors for this big event. We are expecting about 2,000 delegates and 100 exhibitors from around the world. This conference aims to provide a platform for new innovations and new inventions for small animal welfare. This is also an opportunity for Veterinarians to come and meet together to share and enjoy experiences that will hone their professions.

This event is expected to have 5 renowned speakers from USA, UK and New Zealand and distinguished speakers from Asia.

Thank you very much and we hope to receive your reply before June 30, 2016. Should you need further information regarding our organization, please don't hesitate to contact us at (+61) 2 123 456 14 or in our email, info@adworld.com.

The above examples could help you see how an international business letter is made. Further and detailed lesson on how to make an effective international business letter can be found in the following chapters.

## Importance and Purpose of a Business Letter

There are purposes and importance of business letter. The primary purpose is to communicate to your reader about important facts. You must take note that to communicate it an accurate and precise manner. These facts may affect your reader's schedule or activity. For example, there is a delay in delivery. You must provide the accurate reason for the delay and when will the delivery be received. Your letter may contain the following phrase:

Please accept our apologies for the delay in the delivery of your order. There has been a miscommunication between our dispatch department and the shipping agency. We are currently doing our best to fix this problem.

Please expect your delivery to come in your area in a week. You should be receiving it on the  $20^{th}$  of this month.

Again, we apologize for the inconvenience that may cause you because of this delay. We assure you that this kind of problem will not happen again in the future.

Thank you for your understanding.

The second purpose of a business letter is to prompt the reader regarding an action to be done. The reader is given an instruction that needs to be replied with an action.<sup>8</sup> Here is an example:

With reference to our previous meeting last 19<sup>th</sup> of June, 2016, we have agreed to place a discount of 10% from the total amount of our orders.

We are now sending you the order form which needs to be filled-out. Please send this form back to us before the  $25^{th}$  of June so we can arrange the shipment by the  $2^{nd}$  of July, 2016.

The third purpose is to make a decent impression on the reader. A business letter serves as an ambassador of the company who sent it. A good letter is a master key that opens the locked doors. So if your letter gives a good impression on the readers, they would most likely be communicating back to you. But if your letter does not even give interest to the reader then, you lose your chance to build a relationship or a trade. Your letter must form a positive image in the reader's mind. Here are other purpose and importance of business letter.

- 1. It helps to build the business.
- 2. It helps to sell products or services.
- 3. It builds relationship and friendship.
- 4. It catches new customers.
- 5. It opens new markets.
- 6. It wins back lost customers.
- 7. It solves problems and issues between two conflicting organizations.

- 8. It can bring more finances or profits.
- 9. It can be used to collect unpaid debts.
- 10. It builds confidence between two transacting people or organization.

### Important Points to Consider in Writing a Business Letter

In writing a business letter, there are also some things to consider in order for this letter to serve its purpose. Here are some pointers:

#### (1) Consider the relationship

Know your relationship with the receiver of the letter. Are you his customer? Or employer? Or supplier? Or just an acquaintance? By this you would know how to start the letter and what the contents should be. <sup>13</sup> Create a goodwill with your reader. A goodwill is a friendly feeling or feeling of confidence. Many people will not respond or may not talk to you because their impressions and attitude are formed out of reading your letter. As earlier mentioned, your letter acts as an ambassador. It represents your company. <sup>14</sup>

#### (2) Consider the timing

Is this the right time for you to send the letter? For example, your customer is declared to be bankrupt and they still have an outstanding balance. Is it the right time to send a letter demanding for the payment? Or would you rather send a letter that will comfort your customer and reminding them of the outstanding balance in a polite manner? Consider the timing for sales and promotion. This will help you get a positive feedback. <sup>15</sup>Use a tone that is suited to the occasion. <sup>16</sup>

#### (3) Consider your reason for writing

Your letter must be clear enough to be understood. You should also use an active voice to ask for a particular response. Your request should be reasonable and legal. Know the purpose of your letter and use this as a guideline in writing your letter. <sup>17</sup> Inform the reader what he needs to know and don't' let him guess between the lines. <sup>18</sup>

#### (4) Consider your reaction if you were the receiver

If you were to receive the letter, will you be pleased? Or will you be irritated? Will you understand right away what you request or written in the letter? Is it politely done? <sup>19</sup> Put yourself in the shoes of your reader and see if your letter is clear enough to be understood and politely done to be accepted. Don't use jargons your reader is not familiar with. <sup>20</sup>Consider the format.

#### Salutation

In a business letter, your salutation should use the proper form like for a person with position, you can use "Dear Congressman Brown." For your customers or supplier you can use their last name, "Dear Mr. White." If you do not know the gender of the receiver, you can use "Sir" in general, "Dear Sir," or you can also use the name of the department like "Dear Customer Service." But don't use "To Whom It May Concern."

Body

The letter should be clear and easy to understand. But put your emphasis and purpose of your letter in the first paragraph. Then the succeeding paragraph will be the supporting details of your purpose.<sup>22</sup>

Closing

Close your letter with polite closing and with expectancy that you will receive a response from your reader.<sup>23</sup>

**Block** 

Use the appropriate layout, the right title and the addressee.<sup>24</sup> Your signature block is also important. Sign it with black or blue pen, depending on what is the formal color in the country you are sending.<sup>25</sup>

**Enclosures** 

If there are enclosures to be included, you have to specify them at the end of the letter (space below the signature area). It starts with enclosure, then specify the nature of the attached file and specify how many are to be attached.<sup>26</sup>

Carbon Copy

If there are other additional person involve in receiving the same letter, then you also need to specify them. Start with CC, then followed by the name or department receiving a copy.

#### HOW TO CREATE AN EFFECTIVE BUSINESS LETTER

Writing a letter indicates a mirror of who we are and how we perform business transactions. The letter we make helps us to catch customers, maintain customers, communicate with our subordinates or colleague, coordinate with our associates and so on. This is not the same letter that is lengthy or giving sugarcoated words, but it is a professional letter written to will let your reader provide a response. You don't need to write to impress

your reader but you write to give your point, what you need and what is needed to be done. This letter will deal with the situation that requires response. This may even create a series of letter just to finish one transaction and this letter communication may continue to maintain good business relationship. This is a business letter.<sup>27</sup>

#### Planning a Letter

One important factor in the success of any business is planning. Preparation and foreseeing all the possible areas of risks, income, and losses are all included in planning. Letter correspondences are also part of it. A business letter without any consideration and plan will surely come to failure. Planning is also a key factor in creating a business letter.<sup>28</sup>

#### • Research the Facts

It is always an advantage to do a little research before making your letter. Have a chance to check on previous correspondences and find out everything you need to know your reader. This will help you to get away from creating a poor letter.<sup>29</sup> Going through a little research in the previous correspondences, you can list down some things that will help you know your reader. You may be able to know about your reader if they:

- are committed to a business relationship.
- know how to separate professional and personal relationship.
- offer ideas to help improve business relationship and customer services.
- are interested to reduce cost rather than waste money.

After seeing these things, try to imagine and have a visual concept of your reader. After that, have an attention to the topic you want to relay. Another important point is to make your letter simple and understandable, direct but courteous, short but complete.<sup>30</sup>

#### • Consider the Subject and the Reader

After the research, you now have an idea of your reader. With this, you can also have an idea of what topic you are going to talk about in the letter. The facts you've gathered from your research will allow you to organize the best letter output. Making an outline is a good method to see the logical order or the idea in general.<sup>31</sup> Here is an example:

- Paragraph 1: (i) Say thank you for the meeting held.
  - (ii) Be grateful for new ideas shared that can be used for business.
- Paragraph 2: (i) Present the details of the meeting and present the actions to be made.
  - (ii) Verify for correction or any additional topics missed out.

- Paragraph 3: (i) Appreciate for their support and hope for reply.
  - (ii) Suggest another meeting if needed.

One good point to consider is also the interest of the reader. It is good to open your letter with a topic that will attract the interest of the reader.<sup>32</sup> The letter you sent must give a good impression to the reader. In order to do this, you can imagine yourself to be the reader. How will you feel or what will be your impression upon reading your letter.<sup>33</sup> Give emphasis on the "You" attitude rather than the "I or We."<sup>34</sup> The "You" attitude must be worked out in order to bring the best approach to your reader. One principle to remember here is write letters to a person from a person. Write letter to a person, don't just merely write letter to answer a letter.<sup>35</sup> Another area to consider about your reader is, "what is your relationship to the reader?" An employer? A supplier? A customer? A subordinate? These questions will help in the way you make your letter. <sup>36</sup> One good letter maybe is difficult to write because not all people are the same. One apology letter may be accepted by a person because he understood the situation. One may reject the letter because what he cares the most is the business, and no mistake is acceptable. That's why planning and research are very important so that you can send a letter that will really cater to the person who will be reading the letter.<sup>37</sup>

## • Set Your Objective and Make Sure to Accomplish It

A good letter has an objective. Your research will help you find out about your reader and the company. Your outline will give you an idea of the letter as a whole. Your objective will keep you on track and will guide you all throughout while creating the letter. Stay focused on your goal and make sure to accomplish it.<sup>38</sup> Your objective should lead you to answer, "What is the letter all about?" The reader wants a clear answer to the question. This will be enhanced by the details you will include in the letter.<sup>39</sup> One general objective for all business letters is to avoid confusion, cliché, technobabble, phraseology, and inadequate conclusion that will fail to move the reader to action.<sup>40</sup>

## **Components of an Effective Business Letter**

Aside from planning, an effective and successful business letter should aim to consider that its content corresponds to the proper components of an effective business letter.

#### • Language

One cause of misunderstanding is the "language barrier." You have to understand that it is not enough that you have given your message, it is also important that your reader understands the message. It is significant to consider that the language you use is also the same language as your reader. This means that what words you use in your letter should be understandable to the reader. Do not use jargons that are not familiar with them. Nor write a letter that your reader does not even have any idea what are you talking about. Your line of communication should be at the same level in such a way that you both understand what you are dealing with. It is not necessary to exaggerate with the use of words, nor decorate our letter in a way that you are moving away from the actual message. Your reader may feel overwhelmed by the use of words. There is no such thing as "business language." Use simple and plain words. Here are some examples:

Avoid these phrases	Use this
Will you be kind enough to	Please
Come to a decision	Decide
Express a preference for	Prefer

Avoid cliché in order to have more focus on the message of your letter. Consider using more natural way to say things instead of using frequently used expressions.<sup>43</sup>

#### • Tone

Another factor to consider in your letter is the tone, "pleasant tone." The tone is the sound of the writer's voice, this will propose something different from the literal meaning. The writer's words may imply contrast to the literal meaning of the word. A pleasant tone can be accomplished if you are natural, friendly and courteous. Your letter must be personal. Show your reader that you are not only giving statistics, but you are writing as a person. <sup>44</sup> The tone of your letter should show that the writer has is a human being. The letter has a human touch. If your reader feels that you are sincerely concerned not only about the business, but personal relationships, it is most likely that you will receive a response. <sup>45</sup> One point already mentioned above is the relationship of the writer to the reader. This will also have an effect on the tone of your letter. A boss or employer who is sending a letter to his subordinate will sound different from the supplier sending a letter to his customer. <sup>46</sup> Different letters are written for different purposes. Because of this reason that tonal component is important. With proper use of tone, you can make negative news as positive.

But ignoring your tone, even positive news will come out to be negative.<sup>47</sup> Here is an example:

The competition in this position is very tough, with many outstanding candidates. Your credentials are very impressive, but we regret to inform you that they did not match with the current position we need. We hope that you will be able to find a position that will match with your skills and experience.

#### • Focus

The focus of your letter should be on the reader. This is having the "You" attitude. The "You" means you are putting yourself from the standpoint of the reader. With this, you see clearly what are your reader's skills, interests, what he loves to do and hates to do. This gives a human touch on your letter. The "You" attitude must be worked out in order to bring the best approach to your reader. One principle to remember here is write letters to a person from a person. Write letter to a person, don't just merely write letter to answer a letter. There are instances where the writer thought he is focusing on the reader and assumes that his interests and likes are the same with the reader. But the truth is not. Here are some guideline questions that you need in order to know that you are following the "You" attitude: 50

- What motivation will you include for the reader to react positively with your letter?
- What will give interest to the reader?
- What can be the reader's perspective with regards to the topic you detailed in your letter?

At first glance, you may not know the answers to these questions. But if you will do some research and planning, take time to sit down and check in these areas, you will be able to draw clear answers. You must let your reader feel that your letter is of personal value. Here is an example of a letter with a "You" attitude:<sup>51</sup>

#### Dear Mr. Brown:

Thank you very much for considering our agency for your insurance policy.

As your line of service is not covered in the current insurance policy program we have, we are keeping your application on-hold for future reference and further processing once our policy program is updated. We are currently working on this service to be approved. Once the approval is given after six months, we will surely include your application.

Should you request to pull out your application from us, we would appreciate if you will inform us immediately. We would like to inform you that your application is valuable to us. We hope that you will still consider to make partnership with us.

We appreciate your patience and your understanding on this matter.

#### • Length

"The shorter, the better." This is one of the most common rule of thumb, as long as the components of your letter are included. Different letter has different purpose. The purpose of your letter will help you in deciding how long or how short your letter will be.<sup>52</sup> Here are some sentences to avoid:

Avoid these phrases	Use this
• Please see that an inquisition is conducted to ascertain the source of the fault.	Please find out the reason.
• We would like to express our regret for being	
unable to fill-in your orders at this time	cannot meet your present order
considering your prompt request.	immediately.

"Come right to the point," this is another point to consider. Most businessmen are busy and they will not read a very long letter. As much as possible, limit your letter to one page. Put your main topics in the first paragraph. So your reader will know what the letter is all about. Planning will help you limit your letter.<sup>53</sup>

#### • Stationery

In writing a business letter, it is also good to consider the materials you will be using in making your letter presentable and easy to recognize. You are selling your company by your letter address.<sup>54</sup> The paper to be used should always be the best quality. It is plain and not full of unrecognizable designs. The paper color vary, some may use shades of gray, brown, or blue. Some may use different color of paper for different departments. But the best to use is white paper.<sup>55</sup> Before, the paper size used the 8 ½" x 11," but now as the computer

age has governed the business world, A4 size becomes popular. Most printers today are designed for A4 papers. But this does not eliminate the use of the 8 ½ "x 11." The letterhead varies from one business to another. But the most commonly used is designed with business logo, business address, email address, contact number, fax number, website address. <sup>56</sup> If the company has a trademark or distinctive symbol, it is advisable to place in on the letterhead. This trademark should also be placed in every paper transaction of the company like the bill and invoices. Normally, letterheads are printed at the top of the paper. Some companies placed some other information at the bottom of the paper aside from their letter head details on top. <sup>57</sup>

All business letters should be type-written. Proper spacing is important. It should be single-spaced. The font size ranges from 11 to 12 depending on the font. Your font should be formal like Times New Roman or Arial. Do not use decorative fonts. The envelope is also important. This is the first part that your reader will see. It again, creates an impression. The address should be properly placed at the center horizontally and vertically. Also, the address printed on the envelope should be exactly the same as the address printed in your letter. There is no restricted color of the envelope but light colors are preferable. The envelope size that is normally used is the 9" x 4." Others may use the smaller size, 3 ½ x 6."60 The format for business letter could be:61

#### Full Block

This is also called the "complete block." In this format, all the contents including date, salutation, body and ending are all aligned to the left margin. It does not have any paragraph indention but follows the left margin as well.

#### Block

This is sometimes called "modified block." This is different from full block in the position of the dateline, complimentary close and the signature block.

#### Semi block

The difference on semi block with modified block is that the semi block format puts an indention on every start of a paragraph.

#### Standard

This format is formal because it includes an optional subject line. This is ideal for situations in which you need to make a formal response or if it needs to specify the account number or case number.